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The history of the Atlanta University campus parallels the history of the
school's development, Atlanta University opened its doors in 1869 on a
campus consisting of some SG acres in Atlanta, Georgia. Between 1869 and
1929 the school built a substantial physical plant. In 1929 Atlanta
University, Morehouse College, and Spelman College united in the Atlanta
University Affiliation. Under the affiliation Morehouse and Spelman
continued to offer undergraduate degrees while Atlanta University dropped
its undergraduate program and became the graduate school of the other two
colleges. As a part of the affiliation A.U. gave up most of the buildings
on its original campus and moved into new quarters with Morehouse and
Spelman. Today Atlanta University occupies the same campus as Morehouse and
Spelman. At the same time Atlanta University leased many of its old
buildings to Morris Brown College for a minimal fee. Today the original
structures associated with Atlanta University are a part of Morris Brown m
College.

The structure most closely associated with the history of Atlanta 
University is Stone Hall. Stone Hall is a large three-and-a-half story 
brick building. Completed in 1882 the building is typical of the public 
architecture of the period. Although Stone Hall is a noted Atlanta land­ 
mark and is of architectural importance to the city, it is of no major 
architectural significance.

From the time of its construction in 1882 until 1929 Stone Hall's primary 
function was as Atlanta University's administration building. In addition 
the structure contained classrooms and meeting rooms. When Atlanta 
University affiliated with Morehouse and Spelman in 1929, Stone Hall was 
one of the buildings Atlanta University leased to Morris Brown College. 
Morris Brown changed the building's name to Fairchild Hall. Today 
Atlanta University's Stone Hall is the administration building of Morris 
Brown College.

Stone Hall has undergone no exterior alteration since its construction 
in 1882. The interior has been altered to allow for the installation of 
modern heating, cooling, and electrical systems. The original floor 
plan, however, is basically intact. The building is adequately maintained.
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Atlanta University's significance in the history of black education in 
the 19th and early 20th centuries is that it was one of the few schools 
in the South that offered black Americans the opportunity to receive a 
quality academic education.

Atlanta University was founded in 1866 by the American Missionary 
Association with the financial assistance of the Freedmen's Bureau. The 
same "one blood" educational philosophy guided the American Missionary 
Association at Atlanta University as at its other schools such as Fisk and 
Talladega, In the words of W. E. B. DuBois, the teachers of the American 
Missionary Association came South "...not to keep the Negroes in their 
places, but to raise them out of their places where the filth of slavery 
had wallowed them."

The history of Atlanta University's development is similar to that of 
many black colleges. Atlanta began as an elementary-secondary school, 
next introduced college education, and then slowly dropped the elementary 
and secondary school programs. Atlanta University's development is, 
however, unique in a major respect. In 1929 the school ceased to offer 
an undergraduate program and became exclusively a graduate school. At 
the time Atlanta boasted a number of black colleges that existed side 
by side. Each had its own jealously guarded history and traditions and 
each wished to maintain its identity. After long negotiations and in 
the interests of better organizing black higher education by eliminating 
costly duplication, Atlanta University, Morehouse College, and Spelman 
College agreed to unite their efforts. Under the affiliation Atlanta 
University, which had the strongest academic tradition, concentrated its 
attention on graduate education. The affiliation was a success and today 
Atlanta University is one of the country's best predominately black 
graduate schools.

From the beginning Atlanta University dedicated itself to providing black 
Americans with an education comparable to that offered by other American 
schools. Its traditional academic curriculum educated its students 
primarily as individuals and not as members of a minority race that 
required a "special education" because of inherent racial inferiority. 
Although in the 19th and early 20th centuries Atlanta University offered 
a program of industrial and agricultural training in keeping with the
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prevailing vocational approach to black education, the school at the same 
time maintained its strong academic program. Throughout this period Atlanta 
sent its graduates on to professional schools in the North and into leader­ 
ship positions in black communities in the South. Through Atlanta 
University's doors passed many of the businessmen, scholars, teachers, 
lawyers, doctors, and scientists that formed the base of an educated black 
elite and that in this century became the foundation of the modern civil 
rights movement.

Atlanta University is also significant because of the exceptional quality 
of its presidents and many of its faculty. Edmund Asa Ware, Atlanta's 
spiritual and intellectual father, was an outstanding 19th century educator. 
Educated at Yale Ware went South after the Civil War where he dedicated his 
life to Atlanta University and black education. The motto of his class at 
Yale, I Will Find a Way or Make One, became Atlanta's motto and a symbol of 
its spirit and purpose. Ware's dedication to academic excellence and his 
rejection of racial inferiority influenced other black colleges and 
American education in general. John Hope, former Morehouse president and 
Atlanta University's first black president, is noted in every history of 
American education during the first half of this century. Atlanta's most 
famous faculty member,, W. E. B. DuBois, fathered the Atlanta Studies in 
Negro sociology and contributed to every well known periodical and journal 
of the period. It was A.U.'s commitment to academic excellence that served 
DuBois as a model of the type of education black Americans required in order 
to create a "talented tenth" that would lead the struggle for racial 
pride and identity and for social and economic equality.

The significance of Atlanta University rests in the quality of its leaders, 
its faculty, and its graduates. Together they are witnesses to the highest 
achievements of black education in America.
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